University of Texas Rio Grande Valley ScholarWorks @ UTRGV

Theses and Dissertations

5-2017

# Mathematical Modeling of MERS-CoV Nosocomial Epidemic

Adriana Quiroz The University of Texas Rio Grande Valley

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.utrgv.edu/etd

Part of the Mathematics Commons

### **Recommended Citation**

Quiroz, Adriana, "Mathematical Modeling of MERS-CoV Nosocomial Epidemic" (2017). *Theses and Dissertations*. 185. https://scholarworks.utrgv.edu/etd/185

This Thesis is brought to you for free and open access by ScholarWorks @ UTRGV. It has been accepted for inclusion in Theses and Dissertations by an authorized administrator of ScholarWorks @ UTRGV. For more information, please contact justin.white@utrgv.edu, william.flores01@utrgv.edu.

# MATHEMATICAL MODELING OF MERS-COV NOSOCOMIAL EPIDEMIC

A Thesis

by

# ADRIANA QUIROZ

Submitted to the Graduate College of The University of Texas Rio Grande Valley In partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE

May 2017

Major Subject: Mathematics

## MATHEMATICAL MODELING OF MERS-COV

### NOSOCOMIAL EPIDEMIC

A Thesis by ADRIANA QUIROZ

# COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dr. Tamer Oraby Chair of Committee

Dr. Santanu Chakraborty Committee Member

Dr. Sergey Grigorian Committee Member

Dr. Erwin Suazo Committee Member

May 2017

Copyright 2017 Adriana Quiroz All Rights Reserved

### ABSTRACT

Quiroz, Adriana, <u>Mathematical Modeling of MERS-CoV Nosocomial Epidemic</u>. Master of Science (MS), May, 2017, 75 pp., 8 tables, 15 figures, 100 references, 10 titles.

This thesis concerns about the analysis and modeling of spread of an infectious disease inside a hospital. We begin from the basic knowledge of the simple models: SIR and SEIR, to show an appropriate understanding of the epidemic dynamic process. We consider the Middle East Respiratory Syndrome Corona Virus (MERS-CoV), in Saudi Arabia, to introduce MERS-CoV SEIR ward model by developing different systems of equations in each ward (unit). We use the Next Generation Matrix method to calculate the basic reproduction number  $R_0$ . Simulations of different scenarios are done using different combination of parameters.

To model MERS-CoV we established a system of equations from sketch of wards model of a hospital. We divide it into five wards where individuals can travel from one unit to the other and interact with the environment. We consider the following units: Waiting room/Reception (WR), Intensive Care Unit (ICU), Hemodialysis (HD), and Hospital Wards. Each ward has its own carrying capacity which represents the maximum number of patients that can be admitted. We have three kinds of agents: Patients (P), Health Care Workers (HCW), and Mobile HCW.

Here, we study the disease free equilibrium and calculate their values by using *Matlab* codes to obtain the basic reproduction number.

### DEDICATION

The research of this thesis could not have been performed without the assistance, patience, trust, and support of certain people.

I dedicate this work to my parents. They have been my main support throughout my life and in my education. Special feeling of gratitude to Emma Gaspar G. and Pablo Quiroz F. whose words of encouragement were the reason to continue with my goals. My brother and my sister, Antonio Quiroz G. and Carolina Quiroz G., to support me with their knowledge and time to correct me in my studies and presentations.

### ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I am infinitely grateful to God for all of the things I have had in my life. Things such as giving me a healthy life, a beautiful family, and the primary financial support.

I am grateful to my parents for always believe and supported me all of my decisions in every possible way. Without this, I wouldn't be the person who I am. Once again, thank you family.

I would really like to thank Dr. Oraby for all his support that he has offer me with all of my questions; for proof readings, and overall guidance throughout this process. I feel lucky to meet such a great assistant professor in my career education. I acknowledge your support with Matlab computations and I am grateful for continuous encouragements. I would like to thank Dr. Yasar Tasnif for supporting me through their Faculty Research Council Grant 2015 TITLE OF PROJECT: "Modeling within hospital and animal-human-human transmission of middle eastern respiratory syndrome MERS-CoV".

I am grateful to all of the math teachers from Memorial High School that encourage me to do mathematics. I am grateful to all of the professors from South Texas College and UTRGV. Thank you for always helping me without looking at my background and for giving me the key to success in math.

Finally, I am also grateful with the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley for giving me many opportunities to accomplish my goals. Many people made my life in the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley. I am grateful to all of them who surrounded me throughout all of my life. Special thanks to them and all of my friends that help me with homework and life problems, very rewarding. Really thank you all.

V

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pag	e
ABSTRACT	ii
DEDICATION ir	V
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS	v
TABLE OF CONTENTS    v	/i
LIST OF TABLES vii	ii
LIST OF FIGURES it	х
CHAPTER I. INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background of Mathematical Modeling	1
1.2 SIR Model	1
1.2.1 SIR Simulations	3
1.3 SEIR Model	5
1.3.1 SEIR Simulations	7
1.3.2 SEIR Stability Analysis of DFE	8
1.4 Next Generation Matrix and Examples	0
1.4.1 SEIR Basic Reproduction Number	6
CHAPTER II. NOSOCOMIAL EPIDEMIC	9
2.1 Nosocomial Epidemic and MERS-CoV Disease	9
2.1.1 MERS-CoV Disease	0
2.2 Hypothesis MERS-CoV Modeling 2	1
2.2.1 Hospital Ward Models	1
2.2.2 MERS-CoV Parameters	3
2.2.3 Ward SEIR Transmission Model	6
2.3 NGMof MERS-CoV and Disease Free Equilibrium Point	1
CHAPTER III. MODEL ANALYSIS AND VALIDATION	4
3.1 Simulations	4
3.1.1 Simulation of infected patients	4

3.1.2	Simulation of exposed patients	35
3.1.3	Simulation of exposed and infected patients	36
3.1.4	Simulation of infected HCW	38
3.1.5	Simulation for mobile HCW	38
3.1.6	Simulation for quarantine patients	40
CHAPTER IV. (	CONCLUSION	41
BIBLIOGRAPH	ΙΥ	42
APPENDIX A		43
APPENDIX B		56
APPENDIX C		73
BIOGRAPHICA	AL SKETCH	75

# LIST OF TABLES

		Pa	ge
Table 1.1:	SIR Parameters	•	3
Table 1.2:	SEIR Parameters	•	7
Table 2.1:	Cosidered Parameters of MERS-CoV.	• .	20
Table 2.2:	Hospital Parameters, Description and Base Values.	• .	24
Table 2.3:	Disease Parameters, Description and Base Values	•	25
Table 2.4:	Community Parameters, Description and Dase Values.	• .	25
Table 2.5:	HCW (disease) Parameters, Description and Base Values	• .	26
Table 3.1:	Set 1 of $\beta$ Values	• •	34

# LIST OF FIGURES

	Pa	age
Figure 1.1:	SIR Transfer Diagram	2
Figure 1.2:	SIR Simulation Model.	4
Figure 1.3:	SEIR Transfer Diagram	6
Figure 1.4:	SEIR Model Simulation	8
Figure 2.1:	Hospital Wards Model	22
Figure 3.1:	Infected Patients.	34
Figure 3.2:	Exposed Patients.	35
Figure 3.3:	Exposed and Infected Patients in Ward 1	36
Figure 3.4:	E and I Patients in Ward 1	36
Figure 3.5:	SExposed and Infected Patients in Ward 2	37
Figure 3.6:	E and I Patients in Ward 2	37
Figure 3.7:	Infected HCW.	38
Figure 3.8:	Exposed and Infected Mobile HCW.	39
Figure 3.9:	E and I Mobile HCW.	39
Figure 3.10:	Quarantine Patients	40
Figure 3.1:	SEIR Ward Model Transfer Diagram	74

### CHAPTER I

### INTRODUCTION

### 1.1 Background of Mathematical Modeling

The study of mathematical epidemiology helps to understand the behavior of disease epidemics and to assess the effectiveness of surveillance and control measures to stop the spread of infection. In other words, it is a risk assessment tool using the language of mathematics by providing insights about an infections process. Diseases have different classifications. They can be either infectious or noninfectious and differ in their natural history.

**Definition 1.1.1** An **infectious disease** is caused by a microorganism such as a virus that enters the body of another organism [8]. The disease can be passed down between individual organisms [8]. There are two modes of transmission. Direct and indirect. **Direct transmission** is passed by having close contact with an infectious individual. **Indirect transmission** is passed between hosts via the environment [8].

It all started in the eighteenth century when epidemiologists feel the need to study the behavior of diseases in a deeper way. This was done by constructing mathematical models and offering a prediction of changes of disease courses. Up to now, there has been many scientific papers that use the knowledge that provides us with a wide information of how those can be applied. We will start by formulating the model based on the famous Kermack and McKendrick systems of equations [8].

### 1.2 SIR Model

The model is divided into three compartments where individuals can be transferred from one compartment to another at certain rates. The first compartment that is represented by the

1

letter **S** stands for **S**usceptible compartment. The second one, **I**, is for Infected. At this point the person has the neccesary viral load to transmit the disease to another person. Lastly, the third compartment, **R**, stands for **R**emoved. In **R**, the individual is free from the disease and no longer infectious or dead. We assume the model is under a closed population without demographics [8]. This means that the population is constant and there is no immigration/emigration. There are two types of transitions; one transition is from *S* to *I* and the second is from *I* to *R*. For the first transition, from *S* to *I*: a susceptible person moves into the infected compartment at a disease transmission rate  $\beta$  and it can be written as  $\beta = \lambda p$  where  $\lambda$  is the force of infection and *p* is the probability of transmission upon contact. Secondly, from *I* to *R*, an infected individual moves into the recovered compartment with another recovery rate  $\gamma$ . Moving from I to R at a rate of  $\gamma$  can be determined by how long on an average a person can stay in the I compartment. Its reciprocal of the recovery parameter  $\frac{1}{\gamma}$  gives the average infectious period. The following descriptions are expressed in **Figure 1.1** 



Figure 1.1: SIR Transfer Diagram.

The SIR flow can be depicted by the following system of differential equations,

$$\frac{dS}{dt} = -\beta SI$$

$$\frac{dI}{dt} = \beta SI - \gamma I$$

$$\frac{dR}{dt} = \gamma I$$
(1.1)

Where the likelihood of the transition  $\beta SI$  happening is proportional to number of S and number

of I. By adding the three variables we have S + I + R = 1. If we take the derivative with respect to time to the sum of the sizes of the compartments we obtain the following identity S' + I' + R' = 0. This makes the third equation of R' redundant. This system of equations have initial conditions: S(0) which is the initial proportion of susceptible population and I(0) is the initial proportion of infectious population. Then, S(0) > 0, I(0) > 0, and R(0) = 0.

One of the most important feature in the process of modeling diseases is the reproduction number  $R_0$ .

**Definition 1.3.3.1** The **basic reproductive ratio** is the average number of secondary cases arising from an average primary case in an entirely susceptible population [8].

This, will determine if the disease will turn out to be epidemic or not. If  $R_0 < 1$  the disease will not spread into a large population. Otherwise, if  $R_0 > 1$ , an outbreak of the disease will become epidemic.

#### **1.2.1 SIR Simulations**

In this section, the SIR model is solved numerically using *ode45* in *Matlab* (see code in Appendix 1). We give values assigned to the parameters in Table 1.1. The numerical solutions are illustrated in Figure 1.2

Parameter	Description	<b>Base Values</b>	Reference
β	Transmission rate	1.42	[8]
γ	Recovery rate	0.1428	[8]

Table 1.1: SIR Parameters.

The model simulated at the values given in Table 1.1 suggests that susceptible individuals will decrease while the infected and recovered individuals will increase. At some point the epidemic will reach a peak and then decreases while R continues. This means that, from S, individuals will move to I and R at some time. Individuals in compartment R will not go back to S and I. In this model we assume, an average number of 520 contacts per year which means, the daily average is 520/365. We also assume probability 1 for transmission upon contact. For the mean infectious period we use  $1/7 \ days^{-1}$  [8].



Figure 1.2: SIR Model simulation.

Since S + I + R = 1 to change this into a disease free equilibrium we are going to add them so it can gives us 1. By adding them it should gives us 1 and not zero. Now, the disease free equilibrium (DFE) is  $(S^* + I^* + R^*) = (1,0,0)$  where  $S^* = 1$ , I = 0, R = 0. To find the points, we need to look at  $\frac{dI}{dt} = \beta SI - \gamma I$  so we can do the following,

$$\frac{dI}{dt} = \beta SI - \gamma I$$
$$I' = \beta SI - \gamma I$$
$$0 = \beta S^* I^* - \gamma I^*$$
$$0 = (\beta S^* - \gamma) I^*$$
$$0 = \beta S^* - \gamma$$
$$\gamma = \beta S^*$$
$$\frac{\gamma}{\beta} = S^*$$

To find  $I^*$  we do the following,

$$\frac{dS}{dt} = \beta SI$$
$$S' = \beta S^* I^*$$
$$0 = \beta (\frac{\gamma}{\beta}) I^*$$
$$0 = -\gamma I^*$$
$$0 = I^*$$

And to find  $R^*$  we can do the following,

$$S' + I' + R' = 1$$
$$\frac{\gamma}{\beta} + 0 + R' = 1$$
$$R' = 1 - \frac{\gamma}{\beta}$$
$$R' = \frac{\beta - \gamma}{\beta}$$

If the ratio of the parameters  $\beta$  and  $\gamma$  is bigger than one, we expect the number of infected individuals to be large eventually and an epidemic to grow. If  $S(0) < \frac{\gamma}{\beta}$  then I' < 0. This means the disease dies out [8]. Additionally,  $\frac{\gamma}{\beta}$  is called the relative removal rate [8] and the inverse is the basic reproduction number which is  $R_0 = \frac{\beta}{\gamma}$  and is solved in chapter 1.4.4 [8].

SIR models are useful to show the behavior of certain type of diseases such as, influenza, smallpox, and rubella (childhood infectious diseases). These diseases acts so fast that demography is ignored. However, this is not the only concern we have about SIR models. We may encounter a person who catches the disease, becomes infected but is not infectious. The person, in this case, is exposed and is better represented in the SEIR model.

### 1.3 SEIR Model

Many infectious diseases have an exposed period, also called the latent period, where the individual carries the disease, but is not yet infectious [8]. At this stage, the disease is barely growing over time and there are no visible symptoms. In this case, the viral load is so low that it cannot be transmitted to another person. This means the person becomes exposed and goes from the Susceptible to the Exposed compartment and which is represented by the letter **E**.

To develop the model we consider four compartments S, E, I, and R. We will assume the model is closed (demography is neglected) and recovered individuals are not relapsing. We may consider the following figure 1.3 for a better graphic view.



Figure 1.3: SEIR Transfer Diagram.

The SEIR system can be depicted by the following system of differential equations,

$$\frac{dS}{dt} = -\beta SI - \mu S + \mu$$

$$\frac{dE}{dt} = \beta SI - \sigma E - \mu E$$

$$\frac{dI}{dt} = \sigma E - \gamma I - \mu I$$

$$\frac{dR}{dt} = \gamma I - \mu R$$
(1.2)

where the parameter  $\sigma$  stands for the rate of becoming infectious and  $\mu$  is the natural death rate. Thus, the mean latent period is  $\frac{1}{\sigma} days^{-1}$ . Since we assume S + E + I + R = 1 we may omit the last equation since R' = -S' - E' - I' and is given by

$$\frac{dS}{dt} = -\beta SI - \mu S + \mu$$

$$\frac{dE}{dt} = \beta SI - \sigma E - \mu E$$

$$\frac{dI}{dt} = \sigma E - \gamma I - \mu I$$
(1.3)

# **1.3.1 SEIR Simulations**

In this section, SEIR model is solved numerically using *ode45* in *Matlab* (see code in Appendix II). We give values assigned in Table 1.2 and the numerical simulations are illustrated in Figure 1.4

Parameter Description		Base Values	References
β	Transmission rate	1.42	[8]
$\sigma$ Infectious rate		0.07142	[8]
γ Recovery rate		0.1428	[8]
μ	Natural death rate	1/50	[8]

Table 1.2: SEIR	Parameters.	



Figure 1.4: SEIR Model Simulation.

In Figure 1.4 the susceptible population will start decreasing at some point of time and will finally be stable. On the other hand, the recovered population will increase and will be stable after some point. Now, for the exposed and infected populations, they will first increase but for not too long and then will decrease to zero.

### 1.3.2 SEIR Stability Analysis of DFE

We may also consider how to determine if the infectious disease will be endemic or not. That is, we will study stability of the disease-free equilibrium where the number of infected is zero. Setting the SEIR model equal to zero and solving the equations we will be able to determine the disease-free equilibrium.

The disease free equilibrium (DFE) is (1,0,0,0) where S=1, E=0, I=0 R=0. If we let  $S = S^*$  and  $0 \le S^* \le 1$ , then, we will obtain a situation where there will be no infection where one part of the population will be susceptible and the rest is recovered. It follows to have the disease free equilibrium point as ( $S^*$ , 0, 0, 0). We will determine the stability of the DFE using the Jacobian matrix of the SEIR equation. Recall the SEIR model in (1.3) after omitting R' is,

$$\frac{dS}{dt} = -\beta SI - \mu S + \mu =: f_1(S, E, I)$$
$$\frac{dE}{dt} = \beta SI - \sigma E - \mu E =: f_2(S, E, I)$$
$$\frac{dI}{dt} = \sigma E - \gamma I - \mu I =: f_3(S, E, I)$$

Then, the Jacobian matrix of the system is given by,

$$J = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial S} & \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial E} & \frac{\partial f_1}{\partial I} \\ \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial S} & \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial E} & \frac{\partial f_2}{\partial I} \\ \frac{\partial f_3}{\partial S} & \frac{\partial f_3}{\partial E} & \frac{\partial f_3}{\partial I} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} -\beta I - \mu & 0 & -\beta S \\ \beta I & -\sigma - \mu & \beta S \\ 0 & \sigma & -\gamma - \mu \end{bmatrix}$$

By applying the disease free equilibrium (1,0,0,0) were  $S^* = 1$ , and  $E^* = I^* = 0$ , to the Jacobian matrix we have,

$$J = \begin{bmatrix} -\mu & 0 & -\beta \\ 0 & -\sigma - \mu & \beta \\ 0 & \sigma & -\gamma - \mu \end{bmatrix}$$

The eigenvalues are found by solving  $det(J - \lambda I) = 0$  where,

$$det(J - \lambda I) = det \left( \begin{bmatrix} -\mu & 0 & -\beta \\ 0 & -\sigma - \mu & \beta \\ 0 & \sigma & -\gamma - \mu \end{bmatrix} - \begin{bmatrix} \lambda & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & \lambda \end{bmatrix} \right)$$
$$= det \left( \begin{bmatrix} -\mu - \lambda & 0 & -\beta \\ 0 & -\sigma - \mu - \lambda & \beta \\ 0 & \sigma & -\gamma - \mu - \lambda \end{bmatrix} \right)$$

then,

$$det(J - \lambda I) = (-\mu - \lambda)[(-\sigma - \mu - \lambda)(-\gamma - \mu - \lambda) - \beta\sigma]$$
$$= (-\mu - \lambda)[\lambda^{2} + \lambda(\sigma + \gamma + 2\mu) + \sigma(\gamma + \mu - \beta) + \mu(\gamma + \mu)]$$

Thus, the eigenvalues are the zeros of,

$$\lambda_1 = -\mu < 0$$

Solving the quadratic equation we have,

$$\lambda_{2,3} = \frac{-(\sigma + \gamma + 2\mu) \pm \sqrt{(\sigma + \gamma + 2\mu)^2 - 4(\sigma(\gamma + \mu - \beta) + \mu(\gamma + \mu))}}{2}.$$
  
$$\lambda_{2,3} = \frac{-(\sigma + \gamma + 2\mu) \pm \sqrt{(\sigma + \gamma + 2\mu)^2 - 4(\sigma(\gamma + \mu - \beta) + \mu(\gamma + \mu))}}{2}.$$

The eigenvalues determine if the system has asymptotic stability or not and we take a decision, whether it is stable or not, based on their signs [3]. The properties of the eigenvalues are as follows, [3].

- Stable: If both eigenvalues have negative real part [3].
- Unstable: If at least one eigenvalue has a positive real part is unstable [3].

In this case,  $\lambda_2$  and  $\lambda_3$  are negative and  $\lambda_1$  is a positive root. Since at least one eigenvalue has a positive real part [3] then the system is unstable. Substituting the values to the parameters we get,  $\lambda_1 = -.0000391389$ ,  $\lambda_2 = .213326$ , and  $\lambda_3 = -.427624$ . The disease free equilibrium is unstable and there will be an epidemic in the population. If  $\lambda_2 < 0$  then  $R_0 < 1$  and no outbreak of the epidemic. Then, the next generation matrix will lead us to determine what is  $R_0$ . See Example 2 in section 1.4.1.

### **1.4 Next Generation Matrix and Examples**

The Next Generation Matrix calculates and give the basic reproduction number  $R_0$ . In general, let us have a matrix with entries (i, j) where *i* is the secondary infection caused in the compartment by the infected individual in compartment *j* [2]. Then, if we let  $x \in \mathbb{R}^n$  and  $y \in \mathbb{R}^m$  to be the sub population in each respective compartment where *n* is the number of disease compartment and *m* the number of non-disease compartments. Moreover, denoting  $\mathscr{F}_i$  to be the rate at which secondary infectious increase the i - th compartment [2] and  $\mathscr{V}_i$  is the rate at which disease progression decreases the *ith* compartment, [2]. We can denote a compartment model in the form of [2]

$$x'_{i} = \mathscr{F}_{i}(x, y) - \mathscr{V}_{i}(x, y) \quad i = 1, ..., n, \quad [2]$$

$$y'_{i} = p_{i}(x, y) \quad j = 1, ..., m \quad [2]$$
(1.4)

Now, in order to obtain equilibrium from the susceptible population we need to assume two things,

I. Let  $\mathscr{F}_{i}(0, y) = \mathscr{V}_{i}(0, y) = 0$  for all  $y \ge 0$  [2]

In this assumption, we have all new infections to be secondary infections arising from an infected host [2]. At this point, there should not be any immigration of people into the compartment. It ensures that the disease free set consisting of all points of the form (0, y) is invariant [2].

II. The disease free system  $y'_j = p_j(x, y)$  has a unique equilibrium, that is asymptotically stable. Where the solutions with initial conditions of the form (0, y) will approach a point  $(0, y_0)$ as  $t \to \infty$  [2]. This assumption helps us to ensure that the disease-free equilibrium is an equilibrium [2]. The point  $(0, y_0)$  is the disease free equilibrium of the full system [2].

Secondly, let assume that

- I. The matrix  $\mathscr{F}_i(x, y) \ge 0$  for nonnegative *x* and *y*; i = 1, ..., n [2] We denote  $\mathscr{F}$  to be new infections and nonnegative [2].
- II. The matrix  $\mathscr{V}_{i}(x, y) \ge 0$   $x_{i} = 0, \quad i = 1, ..., n$  [2]

 $\mathscr{V}_i$  is denoted to be the net outflow from compartment *i* and negative, whenever the compartment is empty [2].

III. For all nonnegative *x* and *y* we have  $\sum_{i=1}^{n} \mathscr{V}_{i}(x, y) \ge 0$  [2] This sum has the representation of the total outflow from all int

This sum has the representation of the total outflow from all infected compartments [2]

By all of this assumptions we can start deriving the Next Generation Matrix. First, as an example, if one individual is introduced to the hospital free of any disease [2], the initial ability to spread through the population is determined by the linearization of equations(1.4) at initial point  $(0, y_0)$  (the disease equilibrium) [2]. Then we have,

$$\frac{\partial \mathscr{F}_i}{\partial y_j}(0, y_0) = 0, \quad \frac{\partial \mathscr{V}_i}{\partial y_j}(0, y_0) = 0 \qquad \text{for every} \quad (i, j) \quad [2]$$

where this linearized equations for the disease compartments, *x*, are departed from the remaining equations and it follows to be written as [2].

$$x' = (F - V)x \quad [2] \tag{1.5}$$

Where *F* and *V* are  $n \times n$  matrices with the following entries:

$$\mathbf{F} = \frac{\partial \mathscr{F}_i}{\partial x_j}(0, y_0), \quad \mathbf{V} = \frac{\partial \mathscr{V}_i}{\partial x_j}(0, y_0) \quad [2]$$

**Definition** 1.4.1.1 **Endemic** is revalent in a particular locality, region, or population [6]. An endemic equilibrium is (**locally**) **asymptotically stable** if and only if it corresponds to a point on the bifurcation curve at which the curve is increasing..[2]. **Epidemic**, is affecting many persons at the same time, and spreading from person to person in a locality where the disease is not permanently prevalent [6].

Because it is a disease -free system, y' = p(0, y) that has a unique asymptotically stable equilibrium then (2.1) can be determined by the matirx (F - V) in (1.5) [2]

If, we have a number of secondary infections produced by one individual that is infected then, we can denote it as the product of expected duration of the infections period and the rate of secondary infections occurred [2]. Moreover, we can define the expected time that is spent in each compartment by the following integral [2],

$$\int_0^\infty t\theta(t,x_0)dt \quad [2]$$

where  $\theta(t, x_0)$  is the solution of (1.5) and by letting F = 0 and  $x_0$  to be a nonnegative initial condi-

tion, we can represent an infected index case as [2]

$$x' = -Vx, \quad x(0) = x_0 \tag{1.6}$$

where we can solve it by using the integrating factor

x' + Vx = 0 with  $\mu(t) = e^{\int Vdt} = e^{Vt}$ 

$$e^{Vt}x' + e^{Vt}Vx = 0$$
$$(xe^{Vt})' = 0$$
$$xe^{Vt} = c$$
$$x = \frac{c}{e^{Vt}} \Longrightarrow x = ce^{-Vt}$$

and by using the initial conditions we have  $x(0) = ce^{-V0} \Longrightarrow x_0 = c$ .

Thus,  $\theta(t, x_0) = x_0 e^{-Vt}$  is the solution to (1.6) where it shows the path of an individual through a disease compartment from initial exposure through to recovery. Then, we can let the exponential of the solution (1.6) a matrix to be defined by the Taylor series,

$$e^{M} = I + M + \frac{M^{2}}{2} + \dots + \frac{M^{k}}{k!} + \dots$$
 [2].

Then,  $x_0 \int_0^\infty t e^{-Vt} dt = x_0 V^{-1}$  where  $x \ge 0$  [2] where (i, j)th entries of the matrix  $V^{-1}$  is the expected time an individual is initially introduced to compartment *j* and spends time in compartment *i* [2] and by introducing matrix *F* we have the following,

$$x_0 \int_0^\infty F e^{-Vt} dt = F V^{-1} x_0 \quad \text{where} \quad x \ge 0 \quad [2]$$

Ĵ

where (i, j)th entries of the matrix *F* is the rate of secondary infections produced in compartment *i* by an index case in compartment *j*, [2]. Thus, we have the next generation matrix denoted by  $K_L = FV^{-1}$  at disease free equilibrium, [2]. Up to now, let us define some properties of  $K_L$ .

It is is nonnengative and has nonnegative eigenvalues  $R_0 = \rho(FV^{-1})$  that is, there is no other eigenvalue of  $K_L$  with modulus greater than  $R_0$ , [2] and there is a nonnegative eigenvector  $\varphi$  associated with the reproduction number  $R_0$ , [2]. The eigenvector is the distribution of infected individuals which causes  $R_0$  to be the greatest number of secondary infections per generation, [2]. Then, the reproduction number and the eigenvector  $\varphi$ , and  $R_0$  can be to be the spectral radius of  $K_L$ , [2]. We will call the notation of the spectral radius as  $\rho(K_L)$  which is the maximum moduli of the eigenvalues of the matrix  $K_L$ , [2].

We have two cases for  $K_L$ . The first one is when the matrix is irreducible. This means that  $R_0$  is just an eigenvalue of  $K_L$  and has to be larger in modulus than all of the rest of the eigenvalues, [2]. In the second case, when the matrix is reducible, will have more positive real eigenvectors that correspond to  $R_0$  for each strain of the disease, [2]. This applies mostly to the cases when we have a disease with multiple strains, [2].

Next, we need to consider some lemmas and theorems to interpret the reproduction number ( $R_0$ ). This is important because  $R_0 = \rho(FV^{-1})$  follows that disease-free equilibrium is asymptotically stable if  $R_0 < 1$  or unstable if  $R_0 > 1$ , [2].

In addition, we need to know what is the spectral bound of a matrix. If we let D to be a matrix, then the spectral bound of D will be the maximum real part of all of the eigenvalues of D, [2]. Then, if a matrix W has all nonnegative entries, we write  $W \ge 0$  and say it is a nonnegative matrix. If D = sI - B with  $B \ge 0$ , we have a Z sign pattern whose off-diagonal entries are negative or zero, if  $s \ge \rho(B)$  then D is an M-matrix, [2]. *I* stands for the identity matrix.

**Lemma 2.1** [2] If D has the Z sign pattern, then  $D^{-1} \ge 0$  if and only if D is a nonsingular M-matrix.

Because of the assumptions we have stated before, we know that F is nonnegative and the offdiagonal entries of the matrix V are negative or zero. Then, V has the Z sign pattern where the total column sums of V are positive or zero. This implies that V is a possibly singular M-matrix [2]. Since we assume that V is nonsingular, then  $V^{-1} \ge 0$ . Thus,  $K_L = FV^{-1}$  is nonnegative and  $K_L$  is called the next generation matrix with large domain.

**Lemma 2.2** [2] If F is a nonnegative matrix and V is a nonsingular M-matrix, then  $R_0 = \rho(FV^{-1}) < 1$  if and only if all eigenvalues of (F - V) have negative real parts. **Proof:** We know that F is a nonnegative matrix ( $F \ge 0$ ) and V is a nonsingular M-matrix. By lemma 2.1  $V^{-1} \ge 0$ . Then, we let  $(I - FV^{-1})$  have the Z sign pattern and by 2.1 this implies that  $(I - FV^{-1}) \ge 0$  if and only if  $\rho(FV^{-1}) < 1$ . Then,

$$(V - F)^{-1} = V^{-1}(I - FV^{-1})^{-1}$$
  
 $V(V - F)^{-1} = (I - FV^{-1})^{-1}$   
 $= I + F(V - F)^{-1}$ 

It follows that  $(V - F)^{-1} \ge 0$  if and only if  $(I - FV^{-1})^{-1} \ge 0$ . Thus, we have that (V - F) has the Z sign pattern [2] and that  $(V - F)^{-1} \ge 0$  if and only if (V - F) is not a singular M-matrix. Hence, the eigenvalues of all of the nonsingular M-matrix have positive real parts [2].

**Theorem 2.3** [2] Consider the following disease transmission model,

$$\begin{aligned} x_i' &= \mathscr{F}_i(x,y) - \mathscr{V}_i(x,y) \qquad i = 1, ..., n, \\ y_j' &= p_j(x,y) \qquad j = 1, ..., m \end{aligned}$$

Then, the disease free-equilibrium is locally asymptotically stable if  $R_0 < 1$ , otherwise unstable if  $R_0 > 1$ .

**Proof:** Let F be a nonnegative matrix and V be a nonsingular M-matrix. Let  $J_{2,1}$  and  $J_{2,2}$  be matrices of partial derivatives of *p* with respect to *x* and *y* evaluated at the disease free-equilibrium [2]. Then, the Jacobian matrix has the following block structure,

$$J = \begin{bmatrix} (F - V) & 0\\ J_{2,1} & J_{2,2} \end{bmatrix}$$

When  $R_0 < 1$  we say that the disease free-equilibrium is locally asymptotically stable if all of the eigenvalues of the Jacobian matrix (F - V) and  $J_{2,2}$  have negative real parts. By the assumption that F is nonnegative and V is a nonsigular M-matrix and by lemma 2.2 the eigenvalues of (F - V) have negative real parts if and only if  $\rho(FV^{-1}) < 1$  [3]. Thus, the disease free-equilibrium is stable if  $R_0 = \rho(FV^{-1}) < 1$  [2].

When  $R_0 > 1$  we say that the disease free-equilibrium is locally asymptotically unstable. Let  $R_0 \le 1$  for any  $\varepsilon > 0$ , then  $((1 + \varepsilon)I - FV^{-1})$  is a nonsingular M-matrix and by applying lemma 2.1 we know that  $((1 + \varepsilon)I - FV^{-1})^{-1} \ge 0$ . Also, all of the eigenvalues of  $((1 + \varepsilon)V - F)$  will have positive real parts by the proof of lemma 2.2 [2]. Because  $\varepsilon > 0$  is arbitrary and the eigenvalues are continuous functions of the entries of the matrix, it follows that (V - F) will have nonnegative real parts [2].

Going backward, suppose the eigenvalues of (V - F) have nonnegative real parts, then for any positive  $\varepsilon$ ,  $(V + \varepsilon I - F)$  has to be a nonsingular M-matrix and by applying the proof of lemma 2.2  $\rho(F(V + \varepsilon I)^{-1}) < 1$  [2]. Because  $\varepsilon > 0$ , we have  $\rho(FV^{-1}) \le 1$ . Hence, (F - V) has at least one eigenvalue with positive real part if and only if  $\rho(FV^{-1}) > 1$  and will be unstable whenever  $R_0 > 1$  [2].

### **1.4.1 SEIR Basic Reproduction Number**

**Example 1.** Consider the SEIR model that has infectivity in the exposed stage or compartment.

$$S' = -\beta S(I + \varepsilon E)$$
$$E' = \beta S(I + \varepsilon E) - \sigma E$$
$$I' = \sigma E - \gamma I$$
$$R' = \gamma I$$

Focusing in E, we know that we have  $\beta S(I + \varepsilon E)$  coming in and  $-\sigma E$  coming out. The same thing for I, we have  $\sigma E$  coming in and  $-\gamma I$  coming out. Now let us consider  $\mathscr{F}$  to be the inputs due to infection then, we have the following

$$\mathscr{F} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta S(I + \varepsilon E) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

Next, we consider  $\mathscr{V}$  to be the outputs or movements of individuals so that, we have the following

$$\mathscr{V} = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma E & 0 \\ -\sigma E & \gamma I \end{bmatrix}$$

Now, taking their respective partial derivatives we have,

$$F = \frac{\partial \mathscr{F}}{\partial (E,I)}|_{DFE} = \begin{bmatrix} \varepsilon \beta & \beta \\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}, \quad V = \frac{\partial \mathscr{V}}{\partial (E,I)}|_{DFE} = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma & 0 \\ -\sigma & \gamma \end{bmatrix}$$

By taking the inverse of V, we have the following  $\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$ 

$$V^{-1} = \frac{1}{\sigma\gamma} \begin{bmatrix} \gamma & 0 \\ \sigma & \sigma \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{\sigma} & 0 \\ \frac{1}{\gamma} & \frac{1}{\gamma} \end{bmatrix}$$

Now, we can calculate the next generation matrix with large domain for this system of equations at the disease-free equilibrium,

$$K_L = FV^{-1} = \begin{bmatrix} \left(\frac{\varepsilon\beta}{\sigma} + \frac{\beta}{\gamma}\right) & \left(\frac{\beta}{\gamma}\right) \\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

The matrix  $FV^{-1}$  has rank 1 and has only one nonzero eigenvalue ( $\rho$ ) and the trace of  $FV^{-1}$  is the sum of eigenvalues. Then, we can calculate  $R_0$ 

$$R_0 = \frac{\varepsilon\beta}{\sigma} + \frac{\beta}{\gamma}$$

Since the new infections are in one compartment as in this case, the reproduction number  $R_0$  is the trace of the matrix.

**Example 2.** To calculate basic reproduction number for thw SEIR model (1.3) we have to consider equation (1.4)[2], where  $\mathscr{F}_i$  is the rate at which secondary infections increase the i - th ward [2] and  $\mathscr{V}_i$  is the rate at which disease decreases in the i - th disease ward [2]. Then, we can construct  $\mathscr{F}$  and  $\mathscr{V}_j$  as follows

$$\mathscr{F} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta SI \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}, \quad \mathscr{V} = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma E + \mu E & 0 \\ -\sigma E & \gamma I + \mu I \end{bmatrix}$$

Now, taking their respective partial derivatives at the steady point DFE = (1,0,0) (equilibrium point) we have,
$$F = \frac{\partial \mathscr{F}}{\partial (E,I)}|_{DFE} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}, \quad V = \frac{\partial \mathscr{V}}{\partial (E,I)}|_{DFE} = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma + \mu & 0 \\ -\sigma & \gamma + \mu \end{bmatrix}$$

By taking the inverse of V, we have the following

$$V^{-1} = \frac{1}{(\sigma + \mu)(\gamma + \mu)} \begin{bmatrix} \gamma + \mu & 0 \\ \sigma & \sigma + \mu \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{\sigma + \mu} & 0 \\ \frac{\sigma}{(\sigma + \mu)(\gamma + \mu)} & \frac{1}{\gamma + \mu} \end{bmatrix}$$

Now we can calculate  $R_0$  as follows

$$K_L = FV^{-1} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\beta\sigma}{(\sigma+\mu)(\gamma+\mu)} & \frac{\beta}{\gamma+\mu} \\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

Thus, the eigenvalues are  $\lambda_1 = 0$  and  $\lambda_2 = \frac{\beta\sigma}{(\sigma + \mu)(\gamma + \mu)}$  and the spectral radius is the trace of  $FV^{-1}$  then,  $R_0 = \rho(FV^{-1}) = \frac{\beta\sigma}{(\sigma + \mu)(\gamma + \mu)}$ .

Thus, the basic reproduction in (1.3) is  $R_0 = 9.94$ .

### CHAPTER II

#### NOSOCOMIAL EPIDEMIC

#### 2.1 Nosocomial Epidemic and MERS-CoV Disease

The active research of mathematical models of outbreaks of infectious diseases have generated an important impact over the world. There have been suitable models for different types of transmission of infectious diseases. There are two distinguished transmissions, one is called zoonotic cases and the other is secondary cases. For zoonotic case, the transmission involves interactions between animals and humans. For secondary case, it involves human-to-human transmission which could happen in the community or inside a hospital. The transmission of a disease inside a hospital is called hospital acquired infection or commonly known as a nosocomial infection.

**Definition 1.4.1** A **nosocomial infection**, is an infectious disease acquired in a health care facility [6].

In [4], the researchers introduce a model that considers two transmission cases: zoonotic and secondary. They also consider symptomatic and asymptomatic individuals. They had 57% were secondary symptomatic cases [4]. For the community model they estimated  $R_0$  to be around .45. For the index case (animal-to-human transmission),  $R_0$  was estimated to be .84 [4]. They developed a stochastic transmission model where they differentiated the two cases. They used April-October 2013 data for a hospital in Saudi Arabia. In my research, I use a SEIR compartmental transmission model for human-to-human transmission in the hospital.

The people in hospital are divided into five compartments and in a separately manner, we have mobile health care workers. For susceptible individuals we have  $S_i$  where i = 1, 2, 3, 4, m. In this situation, 1 refers to reception, 2 for Intensive Care Unit (ICU), 3 for Hemodialysis, 4 stands

for Hospital, and m refers to mobile health care workers. Accordingly, we use  $E_i$ ,  $I_i$ ,  $V_i$ ,  $HS_i$ ,  $HE_i$ , and  $HI_i$  and for quarantine Q we have HQ and  $Q_m$ .

In [9], researchers consider health care workers that move around and have the potential to transmit the disease in an intensive care unit. We use this idea to produce the MERS-CoV SEIR ward model and that every ward has its own capacity to hold patients.

In [5], authors use modeling based on the interactions in a hospital setting including the environmental load parameter and isolation patients. We use and apply this ward model technique as well as, the disease-free equilibrium in our model for this study.

We will use parameter values from previous studies to produce  $R_0$  and to simulate by using different estimates for the behavior of MERS-CoV. In my research, we considered transition between wards, the rate of shedding the virus into the environment, cleaning rate, carrying capacity, and quarantine parameters.

Parameter	Description
ρ	Rate of shedding virus into environment
$b_i$	Cleaning/removal rate for $i = 1, 2, 3, 4$
ĸ	Carrying capacity for $i = 1, 2, 3, 4$ is for units
$\kappa'_i$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) of HCW for $i = 1, 2, 3, 4, m$ is for units

Table 2.1: Cosidered Parameters of MERS-CoV.

### 2.1.1 MERS-CoV Disease

Middle East Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus (MERS-CoV) is a viral illness and the first outbreak was reported in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia in 2012 [4]. MERS-CoV has become one of the important nosocomial infections. It is a major health care problem in certain countries such as South Korea [10] and Saudi Arabia [4] and [10]. In this study we are going to focus on Saudi Arabia.

In the literature of MERS-CoV [4], data shows that hospitals are to be a major contributor of transmission of MERS-CoV across patients, nurses, visitors, janitors and many others occurring in different units. MERS-CoV infections occur mainly in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) and Hemodialysis (HD) units but minimal in other wards in the hospital. Spread of MERS-CoV is preventable via surface cleaning, hygiene (gloves, masks, etc.), machinery, ventilation, etc. Our primary concern is on the time until diagnosis and its direction, namely, the decrease or increase of the epidemic size.

#### 2.2 Hypothesis MERS-CoV Modeling

Analyzing previous studies of MERS-CoV there is a general situation where health care workers play an important role in the spread of the disease inside a hospital and, intensive care units have the most cases. The development of control measures and active surveillance should be implemented since they are critically needed. The objective will be the study of the spread of this disease inside a hospital.

We introduce SEIR Ward model equilibrium where people such as Health Care Workers (HCW) and mobile HW, who travel between wards (units), are considered to be part of the spread. The model will be used to understand the behavior of the disease by the calculation of  $R_0$  and to study the factors that contribute to the propagation of this disease.

#### **2.2.1 Hospital Ward Models**

We divide the hospital into a number of units or wards. In these wards the individuals interact with the environment. The first unit is the Waiting room (W) where there is an in-flow and out-flow of individuals. Patients are admitted to one of three different units: the Intensive Care Unit (ICU), the Hemodialysis unit (HD) or the Hospital (H) which is made of several wards. The units W, ICU, HD, and H have carrying capacities  $\kappa_i$  with i = 1, 2, 3, 4, respectively, representing the maximum number of patients admissible to them. We also consider a Quarantine unit (Q) that is well isolated.

For this model, when patients (P), and health-care workers (HCW) come in contact with the disease inside the hospital they become symptomatic. We considered two types of health-care workers (HCW). The first type is the local HCW who do not have much contact with patients and the mobile HCW who have more contact with patients and move around inside the hospital.

For the waiting room we consider that individuals can get infected during the time they

21

stayed in the health care facilities or due to other patients around them. Also, the visitors can get infected due to visiting patients or a health care facility.



Figure 2.1: Hospital Wards Model.

Every ward has its own environment where cleaning plays an important factor in decontaminating the environment and spreading the disease. We consider human and natural overall contaminations where dust-mops and other cleaning procedures are counted as a vector. Furthermore, the following assumptions are used to create our SEIR system of equations,

- 1. A 100% staffing all the time (same number of HCWs).
- 2. A 100% occupancy (no empty beds).
- 3. When a Health Care Worker goes into the infected compartment and they are not active they can go into quarantine.
- 4. No vaccination.
- 5. 100 % efficacy of testing of the disease exists
- 6. Disease free system: An infected individual introduced into the population free of the disease [2].

### 2.2.2 MERS-CoV Parameters

Although data is always given to estimate parameters, we have encountered a situation where more than half of them are clueless and therefore generalized some values from [7]. The incubation period is  $\frac{1}{\sigma} = 1$ . The rest of the parameter values are given in Tables 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, and 2.5.

# **Hospital Parameters**

Parameter	Description	Base values	References
$\alpha_{0,1}$	Transition rate from the community 0 to inside unit 1	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{1,0}$	Transition rate from unit 1 to outside community 0	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{1,2}$	Transition rate between the unit 1 to unit 2	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{1,3}$	Transition rate between the unit 1 to unit 3	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{1,4}$	Transition rate between the unit 1 to unit 4	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{1,5}$	Transition rate between the unit 1 to unit 5	.0416	assumed
$\alpha_{2,0}$	Transition rate from unit 2 to outside community 0	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{2,3}$	Transition rate from unit 2 to unit 3	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{2,4}$	Transition rate from unit 2 to unit 4	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{2,5}$	Transition rate from unit 2 to unit 5	.0416	assumed
$\alpha_{3,0}$	Transition rate from unit 3 to outside community 0	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{3,2}$	Transition rate from unit 3 to unit 2	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{3,4}$	Transition rate from unit 3 to unit 4	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{3,5}$	Transition rate from unit 3 to unit 5	.0416	assumed
$\alpha_{4,0}$	Transition rate from unit 4 to outside community 0	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{4,2}$	Transition rate from unit 4 to unit 2	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{4,3}$	Transition rate from unit 4 to unit 3	.0097	assumed
$\alpha_{4,5}$	Transition rate from unit 4 to unit 3	.0416	assumed
$\alpha_{m,5}$	Transition rate from mobile HCW to unit 5	.0833	assumed
$\kappa_1$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) for unit 1	Matlab	assumed
<i>к</i> <sub>2</sub>	Carrying capacity (occupancy) for unit 2	Matlab	assumed
<b>К</b> 3	Carrying capacity (occupancy) for unit 3	Matlab	assumed
κ4	Carrying capacity (occupancy) for unit 4	Matlab	assumed
$\kappa'_1$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) of HCW for unit 1	24	assumed
$\kappa_2'$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) of HCW for unit 2	24	assumed
$\kappa_3^{\overline{\prime}}$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) of HCW for unit 3	24	assumed
$\kappa_4'$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) of HCW for unit 4	24	assumed
$\kappa'_m$	Carrying capacity (occupancy) of mobile HCW	100	assumed
$b_1$	Cleaning/removal rate for unit 1	.1666	assumed
$b_2$	Cleaning/removal rate for unit 2	.1666	assumed
<i>b</i> <sub>3</sub>	Cleaning/removal rate for unit 3	.1666	assumed
$b_4$	Cleaning/removal rate for unit 4	.1666	assumed

Table 2.2: Hospital Parameters, Description and Base Values.

# **Disease Parameters**

Parameter	Description	Base values	References
$\beta_1$	Human to human transmission rate from unit 1	.0022	assumed
$\beta_2$	Human to human transmission rate from unit 2	.0022	assumed
$\beta_3$	Human to human transmission rate from unit 3	.0022	assumed
$\beta_4$	Human to human transmission rate from unit 4	.0022	assumed
$\beta_1'$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 1	.0024	assumed
$\beta_2'$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 2	.0022	assumed
$\beta'_3$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 3	.0022	assumed
$\beta_4'$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 4	.0022	assumed
σ	Rate of becoming infectious	.0059	assumed
ρ	Rate of shedding virus into the environment	1	assumed
ε	Modulation of HCW for shedding into the environment	1	assumed
ξ	Modulation of mobile HCW for shedding into the environment	1	assumed
δ	Natural removal rate	1	assumed
С	Reduction factor for exposed	1	assumed

Table 2.3: Disease Parameters, Description and Base Values.

# **Community Parameters**

Table 2.4: Communit	y Parameters,	Description	and Dase	Values.
---------------------	---------------	-------------	----------	---------

Parameter	Description	Base values	References
$P_E$	Probability that admitted person is exposed	0	assumed
$P_I$	Probability that admitted person is infected	.001	assumed
N	Number of people in community	1,000,000	assumed

### HCW (disease) Parameters

Parameter	Description	Base values	References
$\beta_{2,H}$	Human to Human transmission rate from unit 2 to a HCW	.0138	assumed
$\beta_{3,H}$	Human to Human transmission rate from unit 3 to a HCW	.0138	assumed
$\beta_{4,H}$	Human to Human transmission rate from unit 4 to a HCW	.0138	assumed
$\beta_m$	Human to Human transmission rate to a mobile HCW	.0416	assumed
$\beta'_{2,H}$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 2 to a HCW	.0370	assumed
$\beta'_{3,H}$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 3 to a HCW	.0370	assumed
$\beta'_{4,H}$	Environment to human transmission rate from unit 4 to a HCW	.0370	assumed
$\beta'_m$	Environment to human transmission rate to a mobile HCW	.0250	assumed

Table 2.5: HCW (disease) Parameters, Description and Base Values.

#### 2.2.3 Ward SEIR Transmission Model

To understand the spread of the nosocomial disease, we consider the following SEIR-Ward Model, where *S* is the number of susceptible, *E* is the number of exposed, *I* is the number of infected, *R* is the number of recovered, and *V* the viral load in the environment, with all of those quantities indexed by the unit. The system of equations is at equilibrium and S' + E' + I' = 0and HS' + HE' + HI' = 0. For health-care workers, *HS* is the number of susceptible, *HE* is the number of exposed, *HI* is the number of infected. We only consider mobility in ICU, HD, and hospitals wards, since for waiting room, we assumed to have no transfer rate of HCW. (See Appendix C for SEIR Ward Model Transition Diagram).

### 1) Reception/Waiting room

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{dS_1}{dt} &= -\beta_1 S_1 (cE_1 + I_1) - \beta_1' S_1 V_1 + \alpha_{0,1} (1 - P_E - P_I) N - (\alpha_{1,0} + \alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4}) S_1 \\ \frac{dE_1}{dt} &= \beta_1 (\kappa_1 - E_1 - I_1) (cE_1 + I_1) + \beta_1' (\kappa_1 - E_1 - I_1) V_1 + \alpha_{0,1} P_E N - (\alpha_{1,0} + \alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4}) E_1 \end{aligned}$$

 $I_1$  is the number of super-spreader or community-acquired infectious individuals and is given by,

$$\frac{dI_1}{dt} = \alpha_{0,1}P_I N - (\alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4})I_1$$
$$\frac{dV_1}{dt} = \rho(cE_1 + I_1) - (b_1 + \delta)V_1$$

Such that  $0 \le S_1 + E_1 + I_1 = \kappa_1$  (notice the waiting room is not always full but we assume 100% occupancy)

Where  $P_E$  is the probability that admitted individual is exposed and  $P_I$  is admitted individual is infected. Due to have one index case, we assume that,  $P_E = 0$  and  $P_I = \frac{1}{\alpha_{0,1}N} = \frac{1}{(\alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4})\kappa_1}$ . The previous probabilities depend on the levels of the disease in the population and where  $\alpha_{0,1}$  means people coming from the community goes inside the hospital. We let  $\alpha_{1,5} = 0$  since there is no testing right away in waiting room .

The unit capacity stability entails that:

$$\alpha_{0,1}N = (\alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4})\kappa_1$$

where N is the target population and by solving for  $\kappa_1$  we have,

$$\kappa_1 = rac{lpha_{0,1}N}{(lpha_{1,2} + lpha_{1,3} + lpha_{1,4})}$$

It is preferable to estimate  $\alpha_{i,j}$  independently as it is independent of the disease.

Thus,  $S_1 = \kappa_1 - E_1 - I_1$ , which makes the equation for  $\frac{dS_1}{dt}$  redundant.

# 2) Intensive Care Unit (ICU)

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{dS_2}{dt} &= -\beta_2 S_2 (c(E_2 + HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) - \beta'_2 S_2 V_2 + \alpha_{1,2} S_1 + \alpha_{3,2} S_3 + \alpha_{4,2} S_4 - (\alpha_{2,0} + \alpha_{2,3} + \alpha_{2,4}) S_2 \\ &\qquad \frac{dE_2}{dt} = \beta_2 (\kappa_2 - E_2 - I_2) (c(E_2 + HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) + \beta'_2 (\kappa_2 - E_2 - I_2) V_2 + \alpha_{1,2} E_1 + \alpha_{3,2} E_3 + \alpha_{4,2} E_4 - (\alpha_{2,0} + \alpha_{2,3} + \alpha_{2,4}) E_2 - \sigma E_2 \\ &\qquad \frac{dI_2}{dt} = \sigma E_2 + \alpha_{1,2} I_1 + \alpha_{3,2} I_3 + \alpha_{4,2} I_4 - (\alpha_{2,3} + \alpha_{2,4} + \alpha_{2,5}) I_2 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHS_2}{dt} = \sigma HE_2 - \beta_{2,H} HS_2 (c(E_2 + HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) - \beta'_{2,H} HS_2 V_2 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHE_2}{dt} = \beta_{2,H} (\kappa'_2 - HE_2) (c(E_2 + HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) + \beta'_{2,H} (\kappa'_2 - HE_2) V_2 - \sigma HE_2 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHI_2}{dt} = \sigma HE_2 - \alpha_{2,5} HI_2 \\ &\qquad \frac{dV_2}{dt} = \rho (c(E_2 + \varepsilon HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) - (b_2 + \delta) V_2 \end{aligned}$$

Such that  $0 \le S_2 + E_2 + I_2 = \kappa_2$  and  $0 \le HS_2 + HE_2 = \kappa_2'$ 

The unit capacity stability entails that:

$$\alpha_{1,2}\kappa_1 + \alpha_{3,2}\kappa_3 + \alpha_{4,2}\kappa_4 = \bar{\alpha}_2\kappa_2$$
 where  $\bar{\alpha}_2 = \alpha_{2,0} + \alpha_{2,3} + \alpha_{2,4}$ 

and by solving for  $\kappa_2$  we have,

$$\kappa_{2} = \frac{\kappa_{1}}{\alpha_{2,3}} \left( \bar{\alpha}_{3} \left( z + ad \right) - \alpha_{1,3} - a\alpha_{4,3} \right)$$

$$a = \left( \alpha_{1,4} - \frac{\alpha_{2,4}\alpha_{1,3}}{\alpha_{2,3}} + fz \right) / \left( \bar{\alpha}_{4} + \frac{\alpha_{2,4}\alpha_{4,3}}{\alpha_{2,3}} - fd \right)$$

$$z = \left( \bar{\alpha}_{2}\alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,2}\alpha_{2,3} \right) / \left( \bar{\alpha}_{2}\bar{\alpha}_{3} - \alpha_{3,2}\alpha_{2,3} \right)$$

$$d = \left( \bar{\alpha}_{2}\alpha_{4,3} + \alpha_{4,2}\alpha_{2,3} \right) / \left( \bar{\alpha}_{2}\bar{\alpha}_{3} - \alpha_{3,2}\alpha_{2,3} \right)$$

$$f = \alpha_{3,4} + \frac{\alpha_{2,4}\bar{\alpha}_{3}}{\alpha_{2,3}}$$

Where,  $S_2 = \kappa_2 - E_2 - I_2$ 

# 3) Hemodialysis (HD)

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{dS_3}{dt} &= -\beta_3 S_3 (c(E_3 + HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) - \beta'_3 S_3 V_3 + \alpha_{1,3} S_1 + \alpha_{2,3} S_2 + \alpha_{4,3} S_4 - (\alpha_{3,0} + \alpha_{3,2} + \alpha_{3,4}) S_3 \\ &\qquad \frac{dE_3}{dt} = \beta_3 (\kappa_3 - E_3 - I_3) (c(E_3 + HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) + \beta'_3 (\kappa_3 - E_3 - I_3) V_3 + \alpha_{1,3} E_1 + \alpha_{2,3} E_2 + \alpha_{4,3} E_4 - (\alpha_{3,0} + \alpha_{3,2} + \alpha_{3,4}) E_3 - \sigma E_3 \\ &\qquad \frac{dI_3}{dt} = \sigma E_3 + \alpha_{1,3} I_1 + \alpha_{2,3} I_2 + \alpha_{4,3} I_4 - (\alpha_{3,2} + \alpha_{3,4} + \alpha_{3,5}) I_3 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHS_3}{dt} = \sigma HE_3 - \beta_{3,H} HS_3 (c(E_3 + HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) - \beta'_{3,H} HS_3 V_3 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHE_3}{dt} = \beta_{3,H} (\kappa'_3 - HE_3) (c(E_3 + HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) + \beta'_{3,H} (\kappa'_3 - HE_3) V_3 - \sigma HE_3 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHI_3}{dt} = \sigma HE_3 - \alpha_{3,5} HI_3 \\ &\qquad \frac{dV_3}{dt} = \rho (c(E_3 + \varepsilon HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) - (b_3 + \delta) V_3 \end{aligned}$$

Such that  $0 \le S_3 + E_3 + I_3 = \kappa_3$  and  $0 \le HS_3 + HE_3 = \kappa'_3$ 

The unit capacity stability entails that:

$$\alpha_{1,3}\kappa_1 + \alpha_{2,3}\kappa_2 + \alpha_{4,3}\kappa_4 = \bar{\alpha}_3\kappa_3$$

$$\bar{\alpha}_3 = \alpha_{3,0} + \alpha_{3,2} + \alpha_{3,4}$$

and by solving for  $\kappa_3$  we have,  $\kappa_3 = \kappa_1 (z + ad)$  where,  $S_3 = \kappa_3 - E_3 - I_3$ 

### 4) Hospital (Wards)

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{dS_4}{dt} &= -\beta_4 S_4 (c(E_4 + HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) - \beta'_4 S_4 V_4 + \alpha_{1,4} S_1 + \alpha_{2,4} S_2 + \alpha_{3,4} S_3 - (\alpha_{4,0} + \alpha_{4,2} + \alpha_{4,3}) S_4 \\ &\qquad \frac{dE_4}{dt} = \beta_4 (\kappa_4 - E_4 - I_4) (c(E_4 + HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) + \beta'_4 (\kappa_4 - E_4 - I_4) V_4 + \alpha_{1,4} E_1 + \alpha_{2,4} E_2 + \alpha_{3,4} E_3 - (\alpha_{4,0} + \alpha_{4,2} + \alpha_{4,3}) E_4 - \sigma E_4 \\ &\qquad \frac{dI_4}{dt} = \sigma E_4 + \alpha_{1,4} I_1 + \alpha_{2,4} I_2 + \alpha_{3,4} I_3 - (\alpha_{4,2} + \alpha_{4,3} + \alpha_{4,5}) I_4 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHS_4}{dt} = \sigma HE_4 - \beta_{4,H} HS_4 (c(E_4 + HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) - \beta'_{4,H} HS_4 V_4 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHE_4}{dt} = \beta_{4,H} (\kappa'_4 - HE_4) (c(E_4 + HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) + \beta'_{4,H} (\kappa'_4 - HE_4) V_4 - \sigma HE_4 \\ &\qquad \frac{dHI_4}{dt} = \sigma HE_4 - \alpha_{4,5} HI_4 \\ &\qquad \frac{dV_4}{dt} = \rho (c(E_4 + \varepsilon HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) - (b_4 + \delta) V_4 \end{aligned}$$

Such that  $0 \le S_4 + E_4 + I_4 = \kappa_4$  and  $0 \le HS_4 + HE_4 = \kappa_4'$ 

The unit capacity stability entails that:

$$\alpha_{1,4}\kappa_1 + \alpha_{2,4}\kappa_2 + \alpha_{3,4}\kappa_3 = (\alpha_{4,0} + \alpha_{4,2} + \alpha_{4,3})\kappa_4$$

and by solving for  $\kappa_4$  we have,  $\kappa_4 = a\kappa_1$  where,  $S_4 = \kappa_4 - E_4 - I_4$ 

### 5) Mobile HCW

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{dHS_m}{dt} &= \sigma HE_m - \beta_m HS_m (c(E_2 + E_3 + E_4 + HE_2 + HE_3 + HE_4 + HE_m) + I_2 + I_3 + I_4) - \\ \beta'_m HS_m (V_2 + V_3 + V_4) \\ \frac{dHE_m}{dt} &= \beta_m (\kappa'_m - HE_m) (c(E_2 + E_3 + E_4 + HE_2 + HE_3 + HE_4 + HE_m) + I_2 + I_3 + I_4) + \\ \beta'_m (\kappa'_m - HE_m) (V_2 + V_3 + V_4) - \sigma HE_m \\ \frac{dHI_m}{dt} &= \sigma HE_m - \alpha_{m,5} HI_m \\ \text{Such that } 0 &\leq HS_m + HE_m = \kappa'_m \end{aligned}$$

### 6) Quarantine (isolation)

$$\frac{dQ}{dt} = \alpha_{1,5}I_1 + \alpha_{2,5}I_2 + \alpha_{3,5}I_3 + \alpha_{4,5}I_4$$
$$\frac{dQ_H}{dt} = \alpha_{2,5}HI_2 + \alpha_{3,5}HI_3 + \alpha_{4,5}HI_4$$
$$\frac{dQ_m}{dt} = \alpha_{m,5}HI_m$$

### 2.3 NGMof MERS-CoV and Disease Free Equilibrium Point

Up to now, we can construct our matrices to do next generation matrix for MERS-CoV. Let the disease free state be  $DFE \equiv (E_1^*, I_1^*, V_1^*, E_2^*, I_2^*, HE_2^*, HI_2^*, V_2^*, E_3^*, I_3^*, HE_3^*, HI_3^*, V_3^*, E_4^*, I_4^*, HE_4^*, HI_4^*, V_4^*, HE_m^*, HI_m^*) = \mathbf{0}$  which is an equilibrium point, and where **0** is a 20x1 zero vector. (See Appendix A)

$$\mathscr{F} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_1(\kappa_1 - E_1 - I_1)(cE_1 + I_1) + \beta'_1(\kappa_1 - E_1 - I_1)V_1 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \beta_2(\kappa_2 - E_2 - I_2)(c(E_2 + HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) + \beta'_2(\kappa_2 - E_2 - I_2)V_2 \\ 0 \\ \beta_{2,H}(\kappa'_2 - HE_2)(c(E_2 + HE_2 + \xi HE_m) + I_2) + \beta'_{2,H}(\kappa'_2 - HE_2)V_2 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \beta_{3}(\kappa_3 - E_3 - I_3)(c(E_3 + HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) + \beta'_3(\kappa_3 - E_3 - I_3)V_3 \\ 0 \\ \beta_{3,H}(\kappa'_3 - HE_3)(c(E_3 + HE_3 + \xi HE_m) + I_3) + \beta'_{3,H}(\kappa'_3 - HE_3)V_3 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \beta_{4,K}(\kappa_4 - E_4 - I_4)(c(E_4 + HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) + \beta'_4(\kappa_4 - E_4 - I_4)V_4 \\ 0 \\ \beta_{4,H}(\kappa'_4 - HE_4)(c(E_4 + HE_4 + \xi HE_m) + I_4) + \beta'_{4,H}(\kappa'_4 - HE_4)V_4 \\ 0 \\ \beta_{6,H}(\kappa'_m - HE_m)(c(E_2 + E_3 + E_4 + HE_2 + HE_3 + HE_4 + HE_m) + I_2 + I_3 + I_4) + \beta'_m(\kappa'_m - HE_m)(V_2 + V_3 + V_4) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$\mathscr{V} = \begin{cases} -\alpha_{0,1}P_{E}N + (\alpha_{1,0} + \alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4})E_{1} \\ -\alpha_{0,1}P_{I}N + (\alpha_{1,2} + \alpha_{1,3} + \alpha_{1,4})I_{1} \\ -\rho(cE_{1} + I_{1}) + (b_{1} + \delta)V_{1} \\ -(\alpha_{1,2}E_{1} + \alpha_{3,2}E_{3} + \alpha_{4,2}E_{4}) + (\alpha_{2,0} + \alpha_{2,3} + \alpha_{2,4})E_{2} + \sigma E_{2} \\ -(\sigma E_{2} + \alpha_{1,2}I_{1} + \alpha_{3,2}I_{3} + \alpha_{4,2}I_{4}) + (\alpha_{2,3} + \alpha_{2,4} + \alpha_{2,5})I_{2} \\ \sigma HE_{2} \\ -\sigma HE_{2} + \alpha_{2,5}HI_{2} \\ -\rho(c(E_{2} + \varepsilon HE_{2} + \xi HE_{m}) + I_{2}) + (b_{2} + \delta)V_{2} \\ -(\alpha_{1,3}E_{1} + \alpha_{2,3}E_{2} + \alpha_{4,3}E_{4}) + (\alpha_{3,0} + \alpha_{3,2} + \alpha_{3,4})E_{3} + \sigma E_{3} \\ -(\sigma E_{3} + \alpha_{1,3}I_{1} + \alpha_{2,3}I_{2} + \alpha_{4,3}I_{4}) + (\alpha_{3,2} + \alpha_{3,4} + \alpha_{3,5})I_{3} \\ \sigma HE_{3} \\ -\sigma HE_{3} + \alpha_{3,5}HI_{3} \\ -\rho(c(E_{3} + \varepsilon HE_{3} + \xi HE_{m}) + I_{3}) + (b_{3} + \delta)V_{3} \\ -(\alpha_{1,4}E_{1} + \alpha_{2,4}E_{2} + \alpha_{3,4}E_{3}) + (\alpha_{4,0} + \alpha_{4,2} + \alpha_{4,3})E_{4} + \sigma E_{4} \\ -(\sigma E_{4} + \alpha_{1,4}I_{1} + \alpha_{2,4}I_{2} + \alpha_{3,4}I_{3}) + (\alpha_{4,2} + \alpha_{4,3} + \alpha_{4,5})I_{4} \\ \sigma HE_{4} \\ -\rho(c(E_{4} + \varepsilon HE_{4} + \xi HE_{m}) + I_{4}) + (b_{4} + \delta)V_{4} \\ \sigma HE_{m} \\ -\sigma HE_{m} + \alpha_{m,5}HI_{m} \end{cases}$$

### CHAPTER III

### MODEL ANALYSIS AND VALIDATION

# 3.1 Simulations

Using the estimated parameters in Table 3.1, the equations of MERS-CoV model were

solved numerically using *ode45* in *Matlab* (see code in Appendix B).

Parameter	Description	Base Values
$\beta_i$	Human to human transmission rate where $i = 1, 2, 3, 4$ (units)	.0022
$egin{array}{c} eta_i' \end{array}$	Environment to human transmission rate where $i = 1, 2, 3, 4$	.0024
$\beta_{i,H}$	Human to human transmission rate from units $i = 2, 3, 4$ to a HCW	.0138
$eta_{i,H}'$	Environment to human transmission rate from $i = 2, 3, 4$ to a HCW	.0370
$\beta_m$	Human to human transmission rate to a mobile HCW	.0416
$\beta'_m$	Environment to human transmission rate	.0250

Tal	ble	3.1	1:	Set	1	of	β	Val	lues
-----	-----	-----	----	-----	---	----	---	-----	------

### 3.1.1 Simulation of infected patients



Figure 3.1: Infected Patients.

In Figure 3.1 (a), the number of infected patients ( $I_2$  and  $I_3$ ) increases and  $I_1$  decreases at the beginning of the transmission of the disease. By letting  $\beta_1 = \beta_2 = \beta_3 = \beta_4 = .0022$  the number of infected increases at the same time in wards 2, 3, and 4. This means that, in ICU, HD, and other wards, there is a prevalence of the disease. After t = 0,  $I_1$  detaches from the rest of the curves, since in ward 1 (reception or waiting room) have not HCW, we may assume there is no high transmission disease. If we look closer to to  $I_1$ , Figure 3.1 (b), it is seen that it does not go stable. At the beginning, there are not many infected individuals.

### 3.1.2 Simulation of exposed patients



Figure 3.2: Exposed Patients.

In Figure 3.2, the number of all exposed patients increases and slightly decreases after t = 10. Number of exposed patients increases at the same time in wards 1, 2, and 3. Meaning that almost all of the individuals have a higher exposure to the disease. After t = 0,  $E_4$  detaches from the rest of the curves, where it decreases faster than the rest. We may conclude that in ward 4 (referring to  $E_4$ ) there are not many in/out flow of individuals as in other hospital wards.

### 3.1.3 Simulation of exposed and infected patients



Figure 3.3: Exposed and Infected Patients in Ward 1.



Figure 3.4: E and I Patients in Ward 1.

The exposed variable ( $E_1$ ) in Figures 3.3 and 3.4 (a), will increase faster and after t = 0, it will be stable. However, in Figure 3.4 (b) the infected variable ( $I_1$ ) will not be stable and it will barely increase at a low rate with a certainty that almost zero patients will not be infected.



Figure 3.5: Exposed and Infected Patients in Ward 2.



Figure 3.6: E and I Patients in Ward 2.

The exposed variable ( $E_2$ ) in Figures 3.5 and 3.6 (a), will increase faster and after t = 0, it will decrease but will not reach stability. However, in Figure 3.6 (b) the infected variable ( $I_2$ ) will not be stable and it will barely increase at a low rate after the exposed one decreases.

### 3.1.4 Simulation of infected HCW



Now, consider infected HCW with the same value of  $\beta_1 = \beta_2 = \beta_3 = \beta_4 = .0022$ .

Figure 3.7: Infected HCW.

It is clear in Figure 3.7 (a) the number of infected  $HCW_2$ ,  $HCW_3$ , and  $HCW_M$  increase more rapidly than HCW in ward 4 that has fewer infected individuals. We can assume that  $HCW_{2,3,m}$  are the ones that contribute to the propagation of the disease. Another way to see this is that mobile HCW are moving more in those units than any other one. On the other hand,  $HI_4$ increases at a lower pace (Figure 3.7 (b).

### 3.1.5 Simulation for mobile HCW

The mobile HCW for exposed and infected are shown in following Figure 3.8.



Figure 3.8: Exposed and Infected Mobile HCW.



Figure 3.9: E and I Mobile HCW.

The number of exposed mobile HCW increases from the beginning of the transmission of disease at a faster rate than infected mobile HCW (Figure 3.8). And at some point in time, exposed mobile HCW will stabilize (Figure 3.9 (a)) which means that no more HCW will be exposed. Instead, infected mobile HCW (Figure 3.9 (b)) seems to be stable at the beginning but, in fact it is not so it keeps increasing at a slow pace.

#### **3.1.6 Simulation for quarantine patients**

In the hospital there is only one ward to treat patients and HCW of MERS-CoV disease. Those who get infected go immediately to quarantine and in a mathematical perspective it is treated separately from the rest of the wards and equations.



Figure 3.10: Quarantine Patients.

This figure represents that quarantine is cumulative which means there is no outflow of individuals. The appropriate reason for this graph is that the number of discovered cases goes to quarantine and stayed isolated.

### Conclusion

Overall, the figures showed that exposed variables in any ward have higher number of patients than other. This indicates that people are carrying the disease and transmit it at some point in time. The graphs tell us that number of infected individuals does not increase faster than for the exposed ones. This could lead that the parameter  $\beta$  has a low value. The basic reproduction number for this simulation were calculated by using *ode45* in *Matlab* and came to be  $R_0 = 2.9252$ . This means that  $R_0 > 1$  and an outbreak of the disease will be epidemic. Similar results were given by considering another value for parameter  $\beta_i$ .

### CHAPTER IV

#### CONCLUSION

This thesis emphasizes the analysis of the behavior of MERS-CoV disease in a hospital by using SEIR ward model. The next generation matrix and its properties were used to calculate the basic reproduction number by using *Matlab* codes to develop different simulations. For future work, we would like to have real data so that we can analyze MERS-CoV disease in a deeper way and to hunt which factors contribute more to the propagation in a hospital by doing sensitivity analysis. Some questions that would be for future work are given below,

- Why is it too contagious among humans?
- Does only Hemodialysis unit have a higher transmission risk? [1]

And our future goals are the following:

- 1. To find the carriers that probably contribute to a large spread inside hospitals
- 2. To implement certain control measures such as:
  - [a] Cohorting (Doctor are assigned to small and fixed number of patients)
  - [b] Hygiene practices
- 3. To find out if there is an effective
  - [a] Rapid Diagnostic Test (parameter  $\alpha_{.,5}$ )
  - [b] Active surveillance.

Also, to estimate quarantine variables:  $Q, Q_H, Q_m$  by using the method of non-linear least squares would be beneficial after obtaining real data.

#### BIBLIOGRAPHY

- [1] A. ASSIRI, A. MCGEER, T. M. PERL, C. S. PRICE, A. A. AL RABEEAH, D. A. CUM-MINGS, Z. N. ALABDULLATIF, M. ASSAD, A. ALMULHIM, H. MAKHDOOM, ET AL., *Hospital outbreak of middle east respiratory syndrome coronavirus*, New England Journal of Medicine, 369 (2013), pp. 407–416.
- [2] F. BRAUER AND C. CASTILLO-CHAVEZ, Mathematical models for communicable diseases, SIAM, 2012.
- [3] F. BRAUER, C. CASTILLO-CHAVEZ, AND C. CASTILLO-CHAVEZ, *Mathematical models in population biology and epidemiology*, vol. 40, Springer, 2001.
- [4] G. CHOWELL, S. BLUMBERG, L. SIMONSEN, M. A. MILLER, AND C. VIBOUD, Synthesizing data and models for the spread of mers-cov, 2013: key role of index cases and hospital transmission, Epidemics, 9 (2014), pp. 40–51.
- [5] E. M. D'AGATA, G. F. WEBB, M. A. HORN, R. C. MOELLERING, AND S. RUAN, Modeling the invasion of community-acquired methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus into hospitals, Clinical Infectious Diseases, 48 (2009), pp. 274–284.
- [6] O. DICTIONARY, Oxford dictionaries, Language Matters, (2014).
- [7] D. L. HASTINGS, J. I. TOKARS, I. Z. A. A. AZIZ, K. Z. ALKHALDI, A. T. BENSADEK, B. M. ALRADDADI, H. JOKHDAR, J. A. JERNIGAN, M. A. GAROUT, S. M. TOMCZYK, ET AL., Outbreak of middle east respiratory syndrome at tertiary care hospital, jeddah, saudi arabia, 2014, Emerging infectious diseases, 22 (2016), p. 794.
- [8] M. J. KEELING AND P. ROHANI, *Modeling infectious diseases in humans and animals*, Princeton University Press, 2008.
- [9] E. MCBRYDE, A. PETTITT, AND D. MCELWAIN, A stochastic mathematical model of methicillin resistant staphylococcus aureus transmission in an intensive care unit: predicting the impact of interventions, Journal of Theoretical Biology, 245 (2007), pp. 470–481.
- [10] W. H. ORGANIZATION ET AL., Middle east respiratory syndrome coronavirus (mers-cov): summary of current situation, literature update and risk assessment, (2015).

APPENDIX A

## APPENDIX A

# NEXT GENERATION MATRIX OF MERS-COV

Matrix F

Plot Matrix

0	2,5	·3,5	7, 2,5	5,5
	C,	0Ļ	0Ļ	<i>G</i> L
0	0	0	$\mathscr{F}_{4,4}$	F5,4
0	0	$\mathscr{F}_{3,3}$	0	F5,3
0	$\mathscr{F}_{2,2}$	0	0	$\mathscr{F}_{5,2}$
$\mathscr{F}_{1,1}$	0	0	0	0
	(	$rac{\partial \mathscr{F}}{\partial E_1,, HI_m} =$		

Where the block matrices are

$\beta_1'(\kappa_1-E_1-I_1)$	0	0	
$\beta_1 \kappa_1 - \beta_1 cE_1 - \beta_1 E_1 - 2\beta_1 I_1 - \beta_1' V_1$	0	0	
$\left[\beta_{1}  \mathbf{k}_{1} c - 2\beta_{1} c E_{1} - \beta_{1} c I_{1} - \beta_{1} I_{1} - \beta_{1}^{\prime} V_{1}\right]$	0	0	
	$\mathscr{F}_{1,1} =$		

$\beta_2' \kappa_2 - \beta_2' E_2 - \beta_2' I_2$	0	$\beta_{2,H}' \kappa_2' - \beta_{2,H}' HE_2$	0	0
0	0	0	0	0
$eta_2$ K $_2$ c $-eta_2$ c $_2$ $-eta_2$ c $_2$	0	$\beta_{2,H} \kappa_{2}^{\prime} c - \beta_{2,H} c E_{2} - \beta_{2,H} h_{2} - 2\beta_{2,H} c H E_{2} - \beta_{2,H} c \xi H E_{m} - \beta_{2,H}^{\prime} V_{2}$	0	0
$\beta_2 \kappa_2 - \beta_2 c E_2 - \beta_2 E_2 - 2\beta_2 I_2 - \beta_2 c H E_2 - \beta_2 c \xi H E_m - \beta_2^2 V_2$	0	$eta_{2,H}\kappa_2'-eta_{2,H}HE_2$	0	0
$\left(\beta_{2}\kappa_{2}c-2\beta_{2}cE_{2}-\beta_{2}cI_{2}-\beta_{2}I_{2}-\beta_{2}cHE_{2}-\beta_{2}c\xi HE_{m}-\beta_{2}^{2}V_{2}\right)$	0	$eta_{2,\mu} \kappa_2' c - eta_{2,\mu} c H E_2$	0	0
		$\mathscr{F}_{2,2} =$		

	$\left[\beta_{3}\kappa_{3}c-2\beta_{3}cE_{3}-\beta_{3}cI_{3}-\beta_{3}I_{3}-\beta_{3}cHE_{3}-\beta_{3}c\xi_{3}HE_{m}-\beta_{3}^{\prime}V_{3}\right]$	$\beta_3 \kappa_3 - \beta_3 cE_3 - \beta_3 E_3 - 2\beta_3 I_3 - \beta_3 cHE_3 - \beta_3 c\xi HE_m - \beta'_3 V_3$	$eta_3 \kappa_3 c - eta_3 c E_3 - eta_3 c I_3$	0	$\beta_3'\kappa_3 - \beta_3'E_3 - \beta_3'I_3$	
	0	0	0	0	0	
$\mathscr{F}_{3,3} =$	$\beta_{3,H}\kappa_3'c-\beta_{3,H}cHE_3$	$\beta_{3,H}\kappa_3'-\beta_{3,H}HE_3$	$\beta_{3,H}\kappa_{3}^{\prime}c - \beta_{3,H}cE_{3} - \beta_{3,H}l_{3} - 2\beta_{3,H}cHE_{3} - \beta_{3,H}c\xi HE_{m} - \beta_{3,H}^{\prime}V_{3}$	0	$\beta'_{3,H} \kappa'_3 - \beta'_{3,H} HE_3$	
	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	
	$\left[\beta_{4}\kappa_{4}c-2\beta_{4}cE_{4}-\beta_{4}cl_{4}-\beta_{4}l_{4}-\beta_{4}cHE_{4}-\beta_{4}c\xi_{5}HE_{m}-\beta_{4}^{4}V_{4}\right]$	$eta_4  \kappa_4 - eta_4 c E_4 - eta_1 E_4 - 2eta_4 I_4 - eta_4 c H E_4 - eta_4 c_5^2 H E_m - eta_4^4 V_4$	$eta_4$ K4 $c-eta_4cE_4-eta_4cI_4$	0	$egin{split} eta_4' \kappa_4 &- eta_4'E_4 - eta_4'I_4 \ \end{bmatrix}$	
	0	0	0	0	0	
$\mathscr{F}_{4,4} =$	$eta_{4,H}  \kappa_4' c - eta_{4,H} c H E_4$	$eta_{4,H} \kappa_{4}^{\prime} - eta_{4,H} HE_4$	$\beta_{4,H}  K_{4}' c - \beta_{4,H} c E_4 - \beta_{4,H} l_4 - 2\beta_{4,H} c H E_4 - \beta_{4,H} c \xi H E_m - \beta_{4,H}' V_4$	0	$\beta_{4,H}'\kappa_4'-\beta_{4,H}'HE_4$	
	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	
Ģ	$\left[\beta_m \mathbf{K}'_m c - \beta_m c E_2 - \beta_m c E_3 - \beta_m c E_4 + \beta_m c E_4 $	$\beta_m cHE_2 - \beta_m cHE_3 - \beta_m cHE_4 - 2\beta_m cH$	$E_m - \beta_m I_2 - \beta_m I_3 - \beta_m I_4 - \beta'_m V_2 - \beta'_m V_3 - \beta_1$	$S'_mV_4$		
\$5,5		0			0	
					-	

$$\mathscr{F}_{2,5} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_2 \kappa_2 c\xi - \beta_2 E_2 c\xi - \beta_2 I_2 c\xi & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ \beta_{2,H} \kappa_2' c\xi - \beta_{2,H} H E_2 c\xi & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$\mathscr{F}_{3,5} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_3 \kappa_3 c\xi - \beta_3 E_3 c\xi - \beta_3 I_3 c\xi & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ \beta_{3,H} \kappa_3' c\xi - \beta_{3,H} H E_3 c\xi & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$\mathscr{F}_{4,5} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_{4}\kappa_{4}c\xi - \beta_{4}E_{4}c\xi - \beta_{4}I_{4}c\xi & 0\\ 0 & 0\\ \beta_{4,H}\kappa_{4}'c\xi - \beta_{4,H}HE_{4}c\xi & 0\\ 0 & 0\\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
$$\mathscr{F}_{5,2} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}'c - \beta_{m}cHE_{m} & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}' - \beta_{m}HE_{m} & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}'c - \beta_{m}cHE_{m} & 0 & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}' - \beta_{m}HE_{m}\\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
$$\mathscr{F}_{5,3} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}'c - \beta_{m}cHE_{m} & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}' - \beta_{m}HE_{m} & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}'c - \beta_{m}cHE_{m} & 0 & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}' - \beta_{m}HE_{m}\\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
$$\mathscr{F}_{5,4} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}'c - \beta_{m}cHE_{m} & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}' - \beta_{m}HE_{m} & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}'c - \beta_{m}cHE_{m} & 0 & \beta_{m}\kappa_{m}' - \beta_{m}HE_{m}\\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

At the DFE  $\mathscr{F}'$  is the matrix *F* given by

$$F = \mathscr{F}'|_{DFE} = \begin{bmatrix} F_{1,1} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} \\ \mathbf{0} & F_{2,2} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & F_{2,5} \\ \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & F_{3,3} & \mathbf{0} & F_{3,5} \\ \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & F_{4,4} & F_{4,5} \\ \mathbf{0} & F_{5,2} & F_{5,3} & F_{5,4} & F_{5,5} \end{bmatrix}$$

Where the block matrices are

$$F_{4,5} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_4 \kappa_4 c \xi & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ \beta_{4,H} \kappa'_4 c \xi & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$F_{5,2} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_m \kappa'_m c & \beta_m \kappa'_m & \beta_m \kappa'_m c & 0 & \beta_m \kappa'_m \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$F_{5,3} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_m \kappa'_m c & \beta_m \kappa'_m & \beta_m \kappa'_m c & 0 & \beta_m \kappa'_m \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
$$F_{5,4} = \begin{bmatrix} \beta_m \kappa'_m c & \beta_m \kappa'_m & \beta_m \kappa'_m c & 0 & \beta_m \kappa'_m \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

### Matrix V

Plot Matrix for V which is equal to  $\mathcal{V}'$  at the DFE

$$V = \mathscr{V}' = \begin{bmatrix} V_{1,1} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} \\ V_{2,1} & V_{2,2} & V_{2,3} & V_{2,4} & V_{2,5} \\ V_{3,1} & V_{3,2} & V_{3,3} & V_{3,4} & V_{3,5} \\ \hline V_{4,1} & V_{4,2} & V_{4,3} & V_{4,4} & V_{4,5} \\ \hline V_{5,1} & V_{5,2} & V_{5,3} & V_{5,4} & V_{5,5} \end{bmatrix}$$
(1.1)

0

0

0

 $ho c arepsilon ~~ 0 ~~ b_2 + \delta$ 

Where the block matrices are

 $-\rho c$ 

ho
APPENDIX B

## APPENDIX B

## MATLAB CODE

```
%% This part runs the numerical solution
%%of the ODE using Runga-Kutta 4,5 and plots I
clear all
clc
y=100; tey=1000; te=tey*y;
xspan = linspace(0,y,1+te);
ynot = [1 0 zeros(1,21)];
beta=.0469;betap=.0024;betah=.0338;betahp=.0370;betam=.0816;betamp=.0250;
rho=1;
[X,Y] =
ode45(@odeseir_TORed,xspan,ynot,[],beta,betap,betah,betahp,betam,betamp,rho);
```

```
% List from the odeseir file
E1=Y(:,1)';
I1=Y(:,2)';
E2=Y(:,4)';
I2=Y(:,5)';
HE2=Y(:,5)';
HI2=Y(:,6)';
E3=Y(:,9)';
```

I3=Y(:,10)'; HE3=Y(:,11)'; HI3=Y(:,12)'; E4=Y(:,14)'; I4=Y(:,15)'; HE4=Y(:,16)'; HI4=Y(:,17)'; HEM=Y(:,19)'; HIM=Y(:,20)'; Q=Y(:,21)'; QH=Y(:,22)';

%This is the ODE SEIR function

```
function xprime = odeseir_TORed(t,x,beta,betap,betah,betahp,betam,betamp,rho)
%% List of variables
% 1) Reception/Waiting room
% x(1) = E1
% x(2) = I1 % super spreader
% x(2) = I1 % super spreader
% x(3) = V1
% 2) ICU
% x(4) = E2
% x(4) = E2
% x(5) = I2
% x(6) = HE2
% x(7) = HI2
% x(7) = HI2
% x(8) = V2
% 3) Hemodialysis
% x(9) = E3
```

% x(10) = I3 % x(11) = HE3 % x(12) = HI3 % x(13) = V3 % 4) Hospital (Wards) % x(14) = E4 % x(15) = I4 % x(16) = HE4% x(17) = HI4 % x(18) = V4 % 5) Mobile for HCW % x(19) = HEM % x(20) = HIM % 6) Quarantine (isolation) % x(21) = Q % x(22) = QH % x(23) = Qm % 7) Recovery and Death % x(24) = R % x(25) = D %Parameters %Alphas alpha12= .0097;

- alpha13= .0097;
- alpha14= .0097;
- alpha20= .0097;

alpha23= .0097; alpha24= .0097; alpha30= .0097; alpha32= .0097; alpha34= .0097; alpha40= .0097; alpha42= .0097; alpha43= .0097; alphabar2= (alpha20+alpha23+alpha24); alphabar3= (alpha30+alpha32+alpha34); alphabar4= (alpha40+alpha42+alpha43);

% 1) Reception/Waiting

beta1=beta; beta1p=betap;

```
alpha01in=.00001;
alpha10out=.001;
alpha15= .04166;
PE=0;
PI=.001;
b1=.1666;
```

## % 2) ICU

beta2=beta; beta2p=betap; alpha25= .0416;

beta2h= betah; beta2hp= betahp; b2=.1666; % 3) Hemodialysis beta3= beta; beta3p= betap; alpha35= .04166;

beta3h= betah; beta3hp= betahp; b3=.1666;

% 4) Hospital Wards beta4= beta; beta4p= betap; alpha45= .0416;

beta4h= betah; beta4hp= betahp; b4= .1666;

```
%%%%%%% General
```

N=1000000; sigma= .005952381;

c= 1; epsilon= 1; xi= 1; delta= 1; alpham5=.0833;

kappa2p=24;

kappa3p=24;

```
kappa4p=24;
```

kappamp=100;

### %% Auxiliary variables

```
f = alpha34 + (alpha24*alphabar3)/(alpha23);
```

```
z = ((alphabar2*alpha13)+(alpha12*alpha23))/
((alphabar2*alphabar3)-(alpha32*alpha23));
```

```
d = ((alphabar2*alpha43)+(alpha42*alpha23))/
((alphabar2*alphabar3)-(alpha32*alpha23));
```

```
a = (alpha14 - (alpha24*alpha13)/
(alpha23) + f*z)/(alphabar4 + (alpha24*alpha43)/(alpha23) - f*d);
```

```
%% Unit capacity stability
kappa1=(alpha01in*N)/(alpha12+alpha13+alpha14);
```

kappa2=(kappa1/alpha23)\*(alphabar3\*(z+d\*a)-alpha13-alpha43\*a);

kappa3=kappa1\*(z+d\*a);

kappa4=kappa1\*a;

```
%% Reception/Waiting Room
xprime(1) = betal*(kappal-x(1)-x(2))*(c*x(1)+x(2))+
```

betalp\*(kappal-x(1)-x(2))\*x(3)+alpha0lin\*PE\*N(alpha10out+alpha12+alpha13+alpha14)\*x(1);
xprime(2) = alpha0lin\*PI\*N-(alpha12+alpha13+alpha14)\*x(2);

#### % Environvemnt

xprime(3) = rho\*(c\*x(1)+x(2))-(b1+delta)\*x(3);

#### %% ICU

```
xprime(4) = beta2*(kappa2-x(4)-x(5))*(c*(x(4)+ x(6)+ xi*x(19))+ x(5))+
beta2p*(kappa2-x(4)-x(5))*x(8)+alpha12*x(1)+alpha32*x(9)+alpha42*x(14)-
(alpha20+alpha23+alpha24)*x(4)-sigma*x(4);
xprime(5) = sigma*x(4)+alpha12*x(2)+alpha32*x(10)+alpha42*x(15)-
(alpha23+alpha24+alpha25)*x(5); %-mu*x(5);
%ICU HCW
xprime(6) = beta2h*(kappa2p-x(6))*(c*(x(4)+ x(6)+ xi*x(19))+x(5))+
beta2hp*(kappa2p-x(6))*x(8)-sigma*x(6);
xprime(7) = sigma*x(6)-alpha25*x(7);
% Environvemnt
xprime(8) = rho*(c*(x(4)+ epsilon*x(6)+ xi*x(19))+x(5))-(b2+delta)*x(8);
```

```
%% Hemodialysis
xprime(9) = beta3*(kappa3-x(9)-x(10))*(c*(x(9)+ x(11)+ xi*x(19))+ x(10))+
beta3p*(kappa3-x(9)-x(10))*x(13)+alpha13*x(1)+alpha23*x(4)+alpha43*x(14)-
(alpha30+alpha32+alpha34)*x(9)-sigma*x(9);
xprime(10) = sigma*x(9)+alpha13*x(2)+alpha23*x(5)+alpha43*x(15)-
(alpha32+alpha34+alpha35)*x(10); %-mu*x(10);
%Hemodialysis HCW
xprime(11) = beta3h*(kappa3p-x(11))*(c*(x(9)+ x(11)+ xi*x(19))+x(10))+
beta3hp*(kappa3p-x(11))*x(13)-sigma*x(11);
xprime(12) = sigma*x(11)-alpha35*x(12);
```

```
% Environvemnt
xprime(13) = rho*(c*(x(9) + epsilon*x(11) + xi*x(19)))
+x(10)) - (b3+delta) *x(13);
%% Hospital Wards
xprime(14) = beta4*(kappa4-x(14)-x(15))*(c*(x(14)+x(16)))
+ xi * x(19)) + x(15)) + beta4p*(kappa4-x(14) - x(15)) * x(18) + alpha14 * x(1)
+alpha24 \times x(4) + alpha34 \times x(9) -
(alpha40+alpha42+alpha43) *x(14) - sigma *x(14);
xprime(15) = sigma * x(14) + alpha14 * x(2) + alpha24 * x(5) + alpha34 * x(10) - alpha34 * x(10) + alpha3
(alpha42+alpha43+alpha45) *x(15);
%Hemodialysis HCW
xprime(16) = beta4h*(kappa4p-x(16))*(c*(x(14)+x(16)+xi*x(19))+x(15))+
beta4hp*(kappa4p-x(16))*x(18)-sigma*x(16);
xprime(17) = sigma * x(16) - alpha45 * x(17);
% Environvemnt
xprime(18) = rho*(c*(x(14) + epsilon*x(16)))
+ xi * x (19) + x (15) - (b4 + delta) * x (18);
%% Mobile HCW
xprime(19) = betam*(kappamp-x(19))*(c*(x(4)+x(9)+x(14)+x(6)+x(11)))
+x(16) + x(19)) + x(5) + x(10) + x(15))
+betamp* (kappamp-x(19)) * (x(8)+x(13)+x(18)) - sigma * x(19);
xprime(20) = sigma * x(19) - alpham5 * x(20);
%% Quarantine
xprime(21) = alpha15 * x(2) + alpha25 * x(5) + alpha35 * x(10) + alpha45 * x(15);
xprime(22) = alpha25*x(7)+alpha35*x(12)+alpha45*x(17);
% This ensures that the vector returned is a column vector
xprime = real(xprime(:));
function r0=R0(alpha12,alpha13,alpha14,alpha20,
alpha23, alpha24, alpha30, alpha32, alpha34, alpha40, ...
```

```
64
```

alpha42,alpha43,alphabar2,alphabar3, alphabar4,beta1,beta1p,alpha01in,alpha10out,alpha15,... b1,beta2,beta2p,alpha25,beta2h,beta2hp,b2, beta3,beta3p,alpha35,beta3h,beta3hp,... b3,beta4,beta4p,alpha45,beta4h,beta4hp,b4, betam,N,sigma,c,epsilon,xi,... rho,delta,alpham5,kappa2p,kappa3p,kappa4p,kappamp) %% Auxiliary variables

f = alpha34 + (alpha24\*alphabar3)/(alpha23);

```
z = ((alphabar2*alpha13)+(alpha12*alpha23))/
((alphabar2*alphabar3)-(alpha32*alpha23));
```

d = ((alphabar2\*alpha43)+(alpha42\*alpha23))/
((alphabar2\*alphabar3)-(alpha32\*alpha23));

```
a = (alpha14 - (alpha24*alpha13)/
(alpha23) + f*z)/(alphabar4 + (alpha24*alpha43)/(alpha23) - f*d);
```

```
%% Unit capacity stability
kappa1=(alpha01in*N)/(alpha12+alpha13+alpha14);
```

kappa2=(kappa1/alpha23)\*(alphabar3\*(z+d\*a)-alpha13-alpha43\*a);

kappa3=kappa1\*(z+d\*a);

```
kappa4=kappa1*a;
```

```
%% Plots Matrices for F
F11 = [betal*kappal*c, betal*kappal, betalp*kappal; 0,0,0; 0,0,0];
F12 = zeros(3, 5);
F13 = F12;
F14 = F12;
F15 = zeros(3, 2);
F21 = F12';
F22 = [beta2*kappa2*c, beta2*kappa2, beta2*kappa2*c,
0, beta2p*kappa2; 0,0,0,0,0;
beta2h*kappa2p*c, beta2h*kappa2p, beta2h*kappa2p*c,
0, beta2hp*kappa2p;0,0,0,0,0;
0, 0, 0, 0, 0];
F23 = zeros(5, 5);
F24 = F23;
F25 = zeros(5, 2);
F25(1,1) = beta2*kappa2*c*xi;
F25(3,1) = beta2h*kappa2p*c*xi;
<del>8</del>8
```

F31 = F12';

```
F32 = F23;
F33 = [beta3*kappa3*c, beta3*kappa3, beta3*kappa3*c,
0, beta3p*kappa3; 0,0,0,0,0;
beta3h*kappa3p*c, beta3h*kappa3p, beta3h*kappa3p*c,
0, beta3hp*kappa3p; 0,0,0,0,0;
0,0,0,0,0];
F34 = F23;
F35 = zeros(5, 2);
F35(1,1) = beta3*kappa3*c*xi;
F35(3,1) = beta3h*kappa3p*c*xi;
<del>8</del>8
F41 = F12';
F42 = F23;
F43 = F23;
F44 = [beta4*kappa4*c, beta4*kappa4, beta4*kappa4*c,
0, beta4p*kappa4; 0,0,0,0,0;
beta4h*kappa4p*c, beta4h*kappa4p, beta4h*kappa4p*c,
0, beta4hp*kappa4p; 0,0,0,0,0;
0,0,0,0,0];
```

F45 = zeros(5, 2);

```
F45(1,1) = beta4*kappa4*c*xi;
```

```
F45(3,1) = beta4h*kappa4p*c*xi;
```

#### <del></del>%

```
F51 = zeros(2, 3);
```

```
F52 = [betam*kappamp*c, betam*kappamp, betam*kappamp*c, 0,
betam*kappamp;zeros(1,5)];
```

F53 = F52;

F54 = F52;

F55 = zeros(2, 2);

```
F55(1,1) = betam*kappamp*c;
```

```
%% Plot Matrices for V
V11 = [(alpha10out+alpha12+alpha13+alpha14), 0, 0; 0,
(alpha12+alpha13+alpha14), 0; -1*rho*c, -1*rho, (b1+delta)];
```

V12 = zeros(3, 5);

V13 = V12;

V14 = V12;

V15 = zeros(3, 2);

#### %%

V21 = zeros(5, 3);

```
V21(1,1) = -1 * alpha12;
V21(2,2) = V21(1,1);
V22 = [(alpha20+alpha23+alpha24+sigma),0,0,0,0; -1*sigma,
(alpha23+alpha24+alpha25),0,0,0; 0,0,sigma,0,0; 0,0,-1*sigma,alpha25,0;
-1*rho*c,-1*rho,-1*rho*c*epsilon,0,(b2+delta)];
V23 = zeros(5, 5);
V23(1,1) = -1 \times alpha32;
V23(2,2) = V23(1,1);
V24 = zeros(5, 5);
V24(1,1) = -1 * alpha 42;
V24(2,2) = V24(1,1);
V25 = zeros(5, 2);
V25(5,1) = -1*rho*c*xi;
88
V31 = zeros(5, 3);
V31(1,1) = -1 * alpha13;
V31(2,2) = V31(1,1);
```

```
V32 = zeros(5, 5);
V32(1,1) = -1 * alpha23;
V32(2,2) = V32(1,1);
V33 = [(alpha30+alpha32+alpha34+sigma),0,0,0,0; -1*sigma,
(alpha32+alpha34+alpha35),0,0,0; 0,0,sigma,0,0; 0,0,-1*sigma,alpha35,0;
-1*rho*c,-1*rho,-1*rho*c*epsilon,0,(b3+delta)];
V34 = zeros(5, 5);
V34(1,1) = -1 * alpha43;
V34(2,2) = V34(1,1);
V35 = zeros(5, 2);
V35(5,1) = -1 * rho * c * xi;
<del>8</del>8
V41 = zeros(5, 3);
V41(1,1) = -1 * alpha14;
V41(2,2) = V41(1,1);
V42 = zeros(5, 5);
V42(1,1) = -1 * alpha24;
V42(2,2) = V42(1,1);
```

```
V43 = zeros(5, 5);
V43(1,1) = -1 * alpha34;
V43(2,2) = V43(1,1);
V44 = [(alpha40+alpha42+alpha43+sigma),0,0,0,0; -1*sigma,
(alpha42+alpha43+alpha45),0,0,0; 0,0,sigma,0,0; 0,0,-1*sigma,alpha45,0;
-1*rho*c,-1*rho,-1*rho*c*epsilon,0,(b4+delta)];
V45 = zeros(5, 2);
V45(5,1) = -1 * rho * c * xi;
88
V51 = zeros(2,3);
V52 = zeros(2, 5);
V53 = zeros(2, 5);
V54 = zeros(2, 5);
V55 = [sigma,0; -1*sigma,alpham5];
```

```
%%Matrix F
```

```
F = [F11,F12,F13,F14,F15; F21,F22,F23,F24,F25; F31,F32,F33,F34,F35;
F41,F42,F43,F44,F45; F51,F52,F53,F54,F55];
```

#### %%Matrix V

V = [V11,V12,V13,V14,V15; V21,V22,V23,V24,V25; V31,V32,V33,V34,V35; V41,V42,V43,V44,V45; V51,V52,V53,V54,V55]; r0=max(abs(eig(F\*inv(V))));

APPENDIX C

# APPENDIX C

# SEIR WARD MODEL TRANSFER DIAGRAM



Figure 3.1: SEIR Ward Model Transfer Diagram.

### **BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH**

Adriana Quiroz was born in McAllen, Texas and lived 15 years in Reynosa, Tamaulipas, Mexico. She studied in Reynosa and moved to McAllen Memorial high school to continue with her studies. Afterwards, she went to South Texas College to obtained an associate degree in mathematics and pursued a master degree in The University of Texas Rio Grande Valley. She work with Dr. Yasar Tasnif and Dr. Tamer Oraby in a Faculty Research Council Grant 2015-2016 and where the title of the project was "Modeling within hospital and animal-human-human transmission of middle eastern respiratory syndrome MERS-CoV". She received a MS in Mathematics in May 2017. You can contact her via email at: adrianaquirozg@hotmail.com